NYDFWCH TRACK

National Grid Reference: SS6233198084

Primary Record No. 04959w; 04989w

This track or drive is no longer in use and is overgrown. It was originally constructed to serve Nydfwch Mansion, but following Nydfwch’s absorption into the Penllergare estate and the subsequent demolition of the mansion, the track became an important element in Penllergare’s picturesque landscape. From the track views over much of the southern part of the estate, across the Lower Lake and to the hills and mountains beyond could be obtained. 

The track itself is fairly heavily engineered; built on a terrace where its runs along steep hillsides and flanked by stone-faced banks for long sections. At its western end, on the present A 483, a building shown on the tithe map of 1838 may have been a former lodge to Nydfwch. At its northern end the track descends steeply to meet the Penllergare carriage drive, constructed in 1833, just to the south of  Middle Lodge. It is possible that the lodge was originally the north lodge of Nydfwch, converted to Penllergare Middle Lodge in 1833. Splendid panoramic views across Penllergare estate are gained on the section of track that runs from Middle Lodge to the site of Nydfwch Mansion. The best landscape views are obtained from a small viewing platform (04988w) constructed at the highest point of the drive, immediately to the north of the site of Nydfwch Mansion. It would seem that a watercolour painting by Emma Charlotte Dillwyn Llewelyn and a photograph taken by John Dillwyn Llewelyn were obtained from this platform. The track does not directly approach the site of the mansion, but rather skirts the steep hillside to the east just below the crest of the hill. The reason for this is unclear, but it seems likely that the track may have been remodelled by John Dillwyn Llewelyn in the 1830s or later so as to maintain its views over the Lower Lake and the Penllergare estate. A course closer to the mansion site would have allowed less picturesque views across flat farmland to the west, detracting from Llewelyns remodelled landscape to the east.

Sources: Ordnance Survey 1:2500 maps 1877, 1898, 1916 and 1936; Ordnance Survey 2” to 1 mile surveyors’ sketch map, 1813; Llangyfelach tithe map, 1838

